OSHTEMO CHARTER TOWNSHIP
DOWNTOWN DEVELOPMENT AUTHORITY
BOARD OF DIRECTORS

MINUTES OF REGULAR MEETING HELD September 17", 2015

The Oshtemo Charter Township Downtown Development Authority (DDA) Board of Directors
held a regular meeting on Thursday, September 17th, 2015. The meeting was called to order at
approximately 12:00 p.m. at the Oshtemo Community Center, 6407 Parkview Avenue.

Members of the Board of Directors present: Terry Schley, Fred Gould, Glenn Steeg, Chip
Everett, Maria Dacoba, Rich MacDonald, Mike Lutke, Jay Brown, and Grant Taylor.

Members of the Board of Directors absent: Libby Heiny-Cogswell, Bruce Betzler, Stephen
Dallas and Jack Siegel.

Also present were Themi Corakis and Karen High, Oshtemo Township Parks Director.

Approve Agenda

Mr. Steeg moved to approve the agenda as presented. Mr. Gould supported the motion. The
Chairperson called for a vote on the motion, and the motion passed unanimously.

Approve Minutes

Mr. Gould moved to approve the minutes from the May 21, 2015 meeting with the correction

that Mr. MacDonald be listed as absent rather than present. There were no other comments or
changes to the minutes. Mr. MacDonald supported the motion. The Chairperson called for a

vote on the motion, and the motion passed unanimously.

Treasurer’s Report

Mr. Gould presented the Treasurer’s Report for July and August to the Board. After his initial
presentation, Mr. Gould solicited questions those in attendance. Mr. MacDonald asked how
many mils the DDA captures and if it has any bonded projects. Chairperson Schley replied that
he would look into the mils question and report back at a later time. He added that there were no
bonded projects. Mr. Brown asked where the DDA fund balance was kept and whether the DDA
or the Township received the interest. Chairperson Schley responded that he would look into this
as well, and indicated that municipal funds are generally in very safe, low interest accounts. He
confirmed that interest earned goes into the DDA account.

Mr. Gould noted that the DDA may want to consider revising the approval process for invoices
in the future. The current process requires the Treasurer sign off on every invoice, even when
the expense has already been approved by the DDA Board. Chairperson Schley suggested the
issue be placed on the agenda in 2016.

9/17/2015 Page 1



Mr. Gould noted that OCBA, the consultant for the Streetscape Design project, had been paid
$28,942 of their $32,500 contract. Chairperson Schley then distributed a copy of OCBA’s latest
invoice for $851.40, dated August 31, 2015, for approval. The invoice shows the project at 91%
completion. Chairperson Schley indicated that the contract with OCBA was for time and
materials with a “not to exceed” amount. Therefore, OCBA is required to complete the project
within the budgeted amount. Chairperson Schley indicated that he felt it was appropriate to pay
the invoice despite the project being behind schedule, in part because it was for a small amount.
Mr. Gould then moved to approve the OCBA invoice, and Mr. Taylor supported the motion. The
motion passed unanimously.

Mr. Taylor then moved to approve the Treasurer’s Report with the August 31, 2015 OCBA
invoice, and Ms. Dacoba supported the motion. The motion passed unanimously.

9" Street Rear Access Drive

Chairperson Schley then moved to the next item on the agenda, the Rear Access Drive. He
reminded the Board that per discussions between the DDA and Township, at least two additional
properties must sign the agreement. Mr. Lutke and Mr. Siegel were previously identified as the
potential property owners. Mr. Lutke has signed but Mr. Siegel has not. Chairperson Schley
requested that Mr. Lutke contact Mr. Siegel to find out if he has additional questions or concerns.
Mr. Gould offered to go with Mr. Lutke to meet with Mr. Siegel. Chairperson Schley added that
once the agreements are in place the project can be put out to bid for construction.

Streetscape and Beautification Efforts

Chairperson Schley reviewed the progress to date on the Streetscape Design. A public meeting
was held at the Oshtemo Community Center in July, followed by a Sub-Committee meeting in
late July. OCBA is now refining the selected design, preparing cost estimates, and identifying
alternative funding sources. Chairperson Schley invited all members to attend the next Sub-
Committee meeting, to be held on Thursday, September 24™ at 9:00 a.m. at the Township Hall.

Mr. MacDonald asked what type of alternative funding options would be included and whether
they were likely to be grants or bonds. Chairperson Schley replied that bonding could be
considered, as well as grants, and added that he looks forward to input from Ms. Johnston,
Oshtemo Township’s new Planning Director, because of her grant experience. He noted that the
DDA may also borrow for its projects. Mr. MacDonald then asked if a target budget was
specified in the scope. Chairperson Schley responded that it was not. He added that OCBA’s
charge was to take a fresh look from a designer’s perspective unencumbered by cost issues but
phasing concepts are to be included as outcome to facilitate funding potentials. Mr. Brown asked
if the Streetscape Design addressed DDA property only or included surrounding property as
well. Chairperson Schley replied that the consultants were asked to look for ways to coordinate
with the church property, but that they were made aware that the plan should work with or
without it. He added that the concepts presented at the public meeting included shared parking on
the church property. Chairperson Schley then commented that he expected OCBA to complete
their work in 2015. He added that he was not happy with the schedule delay but understood that

9/17/2015 Page 2



OCBA has multiple design projects with the Township and that the other projects may have
more pressing timelines.

Chairperson Schley then announced that the Oshtemo Rotary expressed interest in funding a
clock at the Citgo site. He added that OCBA is working to include a clock in the design.

CITGO Station Update

Chairperson Schley reported that Mr. Greg Milliken, former Planning Director, received a
request to place a food truck at the former CITGO station. Mr. Milliken looked into the matter
before his departure and determined that the site was not ready for a food truck, but that it might
be potentially viable in the future, subject to controls. Chairperson Schley went on to report that
Mr. Milliken sought feedback from Ms. Dacoba and identified several issues to be addressed
prior to allowing a food truck at the site. These included notification of the local restaurants so
they don’t feel undermined, safety, and parking. Ms. Dacoba added that she had suggested to
Greg that food trucks be allowed at Flesher Field.

Mr. Brown asked for an update on the Kalamazoo County Road Commission’s plans for Stadium
Drive. Chairperson Schley reported that the Road Commission was planning to take some
property from the CITGO station and a lesser amount from the corner across 9" Street.
Chairperson Schley noted that he hoped to get the large signal box moved off the site during the
road project.

Grant & Loan Program Development

Mr. Taylor distributed a revised version of the Grant and Load Program requirements and
application form. He informed the group that it included recommendations from Ms. Johnston,
who developed a similar program for the City of Kalamazoo. Mr. Taylor noted that the revised
document spells out the review process, including staff level review by the Planning Director
followed by Sub-Committee review and then final approval by the DDA Board. Mr. Taylor
added that Attorney Porter’s revisions to the terms and conditions section were also included in
the revised document. In further discussion, it was noted that the Loan portion of the program
had been removed because there were still several details to be worked out. Mr. Taylor
confirmed that all references to the Loan Program would be removed from the Grant program
materials. Chairperson Schley then moved to approve the Grant Program, with the removal of all
references to Loans or the Loan Committee. Mr. Gould supported the motion. The motion passed

unanimously.

Mr. Taylor then indicated that he would like to promote the program through the Township’s
website, a press release, and a letter to the local businesses. Mr. Brown stated that he felt it was
important for the sake of fairness to send a letter about the grant program to all business owners.
After further discussion, Mr. Brown moved to approve the use of operating funds to pay for
mailing a letter to all business owners. Mr. MacDonald supported the motion, and the motion
passed unanimously.

9/17/2015 Page 3



Ms. Dacoba offered to develop a press release for distribution to Al Jones and/or Linda Mah at
MLive. Chairperson Schley requested an opportunity to review the press release prior to sending
it to MLive. Ms. Dacoba agreed.

Any Other Business

a. _Visual Impact of Power Lines

Chairperson Schley announced that the power line poles are being installed east of 9™ Street. He
described them as monster sized poles, and added that the Michigan Supreme Court is still
considering the Township request that ITC be required to place the lines underground within
250’ of a roadway right of way line.

b. In other discussion, it was noted that both the Birches and Pine West are out of business as
banqguet facilities. Pine West is proposing to convert the building to professional offices.

c. Chairperson Schley noted that he would be unable to attend the next meeting. He added that
several members’ appointments would end in December of 2015, including Mr. Gould, Mr.
MacDonald, and Ms. Dacoba. Chairperson Schley also announced that officer elections
would take place in January, and that he was undecided as to whether to continue as
Chairperson. He suggested that the members begin considering whether they would like to
be elected to an office.

Adjournment

Mr. Taylor moved to adjourn the meeting. Mr. Gould supported the motion, and the motion
passed unanimously. The meeting was adjourned at 1:30 pm.

Oshtemo Charter Township
Downtown Development Authority

Minutes Prepared: September 21, 2015

Minutes Approved: November 19, 2015

9/17/2015 Page 4



